
 

 

 

 

AGENDA 
CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION 

January 17, 2013 – 7:00 PM 

 Chairperson Ron Graves 
 Commissioners Gayle Ortiz 
  Mick Routh 
  Linda Smith 
  TJ Welch 

 
1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
2. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Oath of Office - Newly Appointed Commissioner 
 

B. Election of Chair and Vice-Chair 
 

C. Committee Appointments 
a.  General Plan Advisory Committee 

 
b.  Traffic and Parking Commission 

 
c.  Commission on the Environment 

 
d.  Arts and Cultural Commission 

 
3. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 
 

A. Additions and Deletions to Agenda 
 

B. Public Comments 
Short communications from the public concerning matters not on the Agenda.  
All speakers are requested to print their name on the sign-in sheet located at the podium so that their 
name may be accurately recorded in the Minutes. 

 
C. Commission Comments 

 
D. Staff Comments 

 
4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

A. December 6, 2012 Regular Planning Commission Meeting 
 
5. CONSENT CALENDAR 

All matters listed under “Consent Calendar” are considered by the Planning Commission to be routine and 
will be enacted by one motion in the form listed below.  There will be no separate discussion on these 
items prior to the time the Planning Commission votes on the action unless members of the public or the 
Planning Commission request specific items to be discussed for separate review.  Items pulled for 



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA – January 17, 2013  2 
  

 

separate discussion will be considered in the order listed on the Agenda. 
 

A. 723 EL SALTO DRIVE  #10-092   APN: 036-143-35 
Request for a one-year extension to a previously approved Minor Land Division to 
convert four apartment units to condominiums in the VS/R-1 (Visitor 
Serving/Single-Family Residence) Zoning District.  
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner:  Doug Dodds, filed: 1/2/13 

 
6. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

Public Hearings are intended to provide an opportunity for public discussion of each item listed as a Public 
Hearing.  The following procedure is as follows:  1) Staff Presentation; 2) Public Discussion; 3) Planning 
Commission Comments; 4) Close public portion of the Hearing; 5) Planning Commission Discussion; and 
6) Decision. 

 
A. 1900 41ST AVENUE                             #12-155                             APN 034-201-10 

Amendment to an existing restaurant Conditional Use Permit (Capitola Diner) to 
incorporate a bar use and allow live entertainment in the CC (Community 
Commercial) Zoning District. 
Environmental Determination:  Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner:  R. Deane, filed: 11/21/12 
Representative:  Pedro Salazar  

 
B. 3555 CLARES STREET, SUITE G            #12-159                             APN 034-261-56 

Amendment to an existing restaurant Conditional Use Permit (Crown Cafe) to 
allow an outdoor barbeque in the CC (Community Commercial) Zoning District. 
Environmental Determination:  Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner:  Bob Rivers, Brown Ranch Properties, filed: 12/13/12 
Representative:  Ron Clements, Jr. 

 
7. DIRECTOR'S REPORT 
 
8. COMMISSION COMMUNICATIONS 
 
9. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Adjourn to the next Planning Commission on Thursday, February 7, 2013 at 7:00 PM, in the City 
Hall Council Chambers, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, California. 

 

 
APPEALS:  The following decisions of the Planning Commission can be appealed to the City Council within the 
(10) calendar days following the date of the Commission action:  Conditional Use Permit, Variance, and Coastal 
Permit.  The decision of the Planning Commission pertaining to an Architectural and Site Review can be appealed 
to the City Council within the (10) working days following the date of the Commission action.  If the tenth day falls 
on a weekend or holiday, the appeal period is extended to the next business day. 
 
All appeals must be in writing, setting forth the nature of the action and the basis upon which the action is 
considered to be in error, and addressed to the City Council in care of the City Clerk.  An appeal must be 
accompanied by a one hundred forty two dollar ($142.00) filing fee, unless the item involves a Coastal Permit that 
is appealable to the Coastal Commission, in which case there is no fee.  If you challenge a decision of the 
Planning Commission in court, you may be limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at the 
public hearing described in this agenda, or in written correspondence delivered to the City at, or prior to, the 
public hearing. 
 
Notice regarding Planning Commission meetings:  The Planning Commission meets regularly on the 1st 



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA – January 17, 2013  3 
  

 

Thursday of each month at 7:00 p.m. in the City Hall Council Chambers located at 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola. 
 
Agenda and Agenda Packet Materials:  The Planning Commission Agenda and complete Agenda Packet are 
available on the Internet at the City's website:  www.ci.capitola.ca.us.  Agendas are also available at the Capitola 
Branch Library, 2005 Wharf Road, Capitola, on the Monday prior to the Thursday meeting.  Need more 
information?  Contact the Community Development Department at (831) 475-7300. 
 
Agenda Materials Distributed after Distribution of the Agenda Packet:  Materials that are a public record 
under Government Code § 54957.5(A) and that relate to an agenda item of a regular meeting of the Planning 
Commission that are distributed to a majority of all the members of the Planning Commission more than 72 hours 
prior to that meeting shall be available for public inspection at City Hall located at 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, 
during normal business hours. 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act:  Disability-related aids or services are available to enable persons with a 
disability to participate in this meeting consistent with the Federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  
Assisted listening devices are available for individuals with hearing impairments at the meeting in the City Council 
Chambers.  Should you require special accommodations to participate in the meeting due to a disability, please 
contact the Community Development Department at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting at (831) 475-7300.  
In an effort to accommodate individuals with environmental sensitivities, attendees are requested to refrain from 
wearing perfumes and other scented products. 
 
Televised Meetings:  Planning Commission meetings are cablecast "Live" on Charter Communications Cable TV 
Channel 8 and are recorded to be replayed at 12:00 Noon on the Saturday following the meetings on Community 
Television of Santa Cruz County (Charter Channel 71 and Comcast Channel 25).  Meetings can also be viewed 
from the City's website:  www.ci.capitola.ca.us 
 
 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



 
 
 
Chairperson Graves called the Regular Meeting of the Capitola Planning Commission to order at 7:00   
p.m.     
 
1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Commissioners: Ed Newman, Gayle Ortiz, Mick Routh, Linda Smith and 
Chairperson Ron Graves 

   
2. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

 
A. Additions and Deletions to Agenda - None 

 
B. Public Comments - None 

 

C. Commission Comments - None 
 

D. Staff Comments - None 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

A. November 1, 2012 Regular Planning Commission Meeting 
 
A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER NEWMAN AND SECONDED BY COMMISSIONER 
ROUTH TO APPROVE THE NOVEMBER 1, 2012 MEETING MINUTES. 
 
THE MOTION CARRIED ON THE FOLLOWING VOTE:  AYES:  COMMISSIONERS NEWMAN, 
ORTIZ, ROUTH, AND SMITH.  NOES:  NONE.  ABSENT:  NONE.  ABSTAIN:  CHAIRPERSON 
GRAVES. 
 
4. CONSENT CALENDAR 

 
A.  2185 41st AVENUE      #12-149      APN: 034-192-02 

Sign Permit for a new wall signs in the CC (Community Commercial) Zoning District. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Hernan Termeno, filed 11/9/12 
Representative: Susan Saltado/Liberty Tax 

 
A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER ORTIZ AND SECONDED BY COMMISSIONSER 
NEWMAN TO APPROVE PROJECT APPLICATION #12-149 WITH THE FOLLOWING 
CONDITIONS AND FINDINGS: 
 
CONDITIONS 
 
1. The project approval consists of a new wall sign with illuminated channel letters for “Liberty Tax” 

located at 2185 41st Avenue. 
 

DRAFT MINUTES 
CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

THURSDAY, DECEMBER 6, 2012 
7:00 P.M. – CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 
 

-1-

Item #: 4.A. 4.A.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – DECEMBER 6, 2012  2 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2012\Draft Minutes\12-6-12 DRAFT Minutes.doc 

 

2. If minor modifications to the signs are desired by the applicant (i.e. lettering, materials, colors, 
illumination, etc.), the changes may be approved by the Community Development Department. 
Any significant changes shall require Planning Commission approval. 

 
3. The application shall be reviewed by the Planning Commission upon evidence of non-compliance 

with conditions of approval or applicable municipal code provisions. 
 
4. Prior to building permit sign off, compliance with all conditions of approval shall be demonstrated 

to the satisfaction of the Zoning Administrator or Community Development Director. 
 
FINDINGS 
 
A. The application, subject to the conditions imposed, will secure the purposes of the 

Zoning Ordinance and General Plan.   
 

The Planning Commission finds that the proposed wall signs comply with the Sign Ordinance 
regulations in terms of size and design.   

 
B. The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood.   
 

The Community Development Department Staff and Planning Commission have reviewed the 
project and have determined that the proposed signage conforms to the applicable provisions 
of the 41st Avenue Area Design Guidelines as well as the Sign Ordinance, which were 
developed to ensure projects maintain the character and integrity of the 41st Avenue 
commercial area of the City. 

 
C. This project is categorically exempt under the Section 15311(a) of the California 

Environmental Quality Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations. 

 
This project involves the installation of a wall sign for an office use.  Section 15311(a) exempts 
on-premise signs appurtenant to existing commercial facilities. 

 
THE MOTION CARRIED ON THE FOLLOWING VOTE:  AYES:  COMMISSIONERS NEWMAN, 
ORTIZ, ROUTH, SMITH AND CHAIRPERSON GRAVES.  NOES:  NONE.  ABSENT:  NONE.  
ABSTAIN:  NONE. 
 

B.  700 ESCALONA DRIVE      #12-152      APN: 036-141-05 
Amendment to a previously approved Design Permit to construct a new two-story 
single-family residence to add a second floor deck in the R-1 (Single-Family 
Residence) Zoning District. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Lori Perpich & Alberto Munoz, filed 11/19/12 
Representative: Derek Van Alstine 

 
A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER ORTIZ AND SECONDED BY COMMISSIONSER 
NEWMAN TO APPROVE PROJECT APPLICATION #12-152 WITH THE FOLLOWING 
CONDITIONS AND FINDINGS: 
 

-2-

Item #: 4.A. 4.A.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – DECEMBER 6, 2012  3 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2012\Draft Minutes\12-6-12 DRAFT Minutes.doc 

 

CONDITIONS 

 
1. The project approval consists of a minor amendment to a previously approved single-family 

structure that is currently under construction at 700 Escalona Drive.  The amendment would allow 
for the addition of a 64 square foot second floor deck. 

 
2. Any significant modifications to the size or exterior appearance of the structure must be approved 

by the Planning Commission. 
 
3. Hours of construction shall be Monday to Friday 7:30 a.m. – 9:00 p.m., and Saturday 9:00 a.m. – 

4:00 p.m., per city ordinance. 
 
4. The utilities shall be underground to the nearest utility pole in accordance with PG&E and Public 

Works Department requirements.  A note shall be placed on the final building plans indicating this 
requirement. 

 
5. An encroachment permit shall be acquired for any work performed in the right-of-way. 
 
6. The project shall implement Low Impact Development BMP’s outlined in the Slow it. Spread it. 

Sink it. Homeowner’s Guide to Greening Stormwater Runoff by the Resource Conservation District 
of Santa Cruz County.  The applicant shall provide details on the bmp’s implemented and with a 
goal of not allowing more than 25% of total impervious area from discharging directly from the site. 

 
7. The final landscape plan shall be submitted with the building permit application and will include the 

specific number of plants of each type and their size, as well as the irrigation system to be utilized. 
Front yard landscaping shall be installed prior to final building occupancy. 

 
8. Affordable housing in-lieu fees shall be paid as required to assure compliance with the City of 

Capitola Affordable (Inclusionary) Housing Ordinance.  Any appropriate fees shall be paid prior to 
building permit issuance. 

 
9. Prior to granting of final occupancy, compliance with all conditions of approval shall be 

demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Zoning Administrator or Community Development Director. 
 
FINDINGS 
 
A.  The application, subject to the conditions imposed, will secure the purposes of the 

Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan. 
 
 Planning Department Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the Planning 

Commission have all reviewed the project.  The project conforms to the development 
standards of the R-1 (Single Family Residence) Zoning District.  Conditions of approval have 
been included to carry out the objectives of the Zoning Ordinance, General Plan and Local 
Coastal Plan. 

 
B.  The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood. 
 
 Planning Department Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the Planning 

Commission have all reviewed the project.  The project conforms to the development 
standards of the R-1 (Single Family Residence) Zoning District.  Conditions of approval have 
been included to ensure that the project maintains the character and integrity of the 
neighborhood. 

 

-3-

Item #: 4.A. 4.A.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – DECEMBER 6, 2012  4 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2012\Draft Minutes\12-6-12 DRAFT Minutes.doc 

 

C.  This project is categorically exempt under Section 15303(a) of the California 
Environmental Quality Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations. 

 
 This project involves a minor amendment to the construction of a new single-family residence 

in the R-1 (single family residence) Zoning District.  Section 15303 of the CEQA Guidelines 
exempts the construction of a single-family residence in a residential zone.   

 
THE MOTION CARRIED ON THE FOLLOWING VOTE:  AYES:  COMMISSIONERS NEWMAN, 
ORTIZ, ROUTH, SMITH AND CHAIRPERSON GRAVES.  NOES:  NONE.  ABSENT:  NONE.  
ABSTAIN:  NONE. 
 

C.  904 SIR FRANCIS AVENUE      #06-061TX      APN: 036-222-07 
Request for a one-year extension to a previously approved Coastal Permit and 
Architectural and Site Review for the remodel of an existing single-family residence 
and construction of a new second story in the R-1 (Single Family Residence) Zoning 
District. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Justin and Lisa Maffia, owners, filed 11/15/12 

 
A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER ORTIZ AND SECONDED BY COMMISSIONSER 
NEWMAN TO APPROVE PROJECT APPLICATION #06-061TX WITH THE FOLLOWING FINDING: 
 
A. A substantial change of circumstances has not occurred since Planning Commission 

approval of the permit on December 7, 2006. An additional one-year extension of the 
permit to December 7, 2013, would not be detrimental to the purpose of the certified 
local coastal program and zoning ordinance. 

 
The Planning Commission finds that neither the physical characteristics of the lot nor the 
zoning ordinance has changed since approval of the permit on December 7, 2006. Therefore, 
(a fifth) one-year extension (to December 7, 2013) of said permit is appropriate. 

 
THE MOTION CARRIED ON THE FOLLOWING VOTE:  AYES:  COMMISSIONERS NEWMAN, 
ORTIZ, ROUTH, SMITH AND CHAIRPERSON GRAVES.  NOES:  NONE.  ABSENT:  NONE.  
ABSTAIN:  NONE. 
 
5.  PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
A.  2178 41ST AVENUE      #12-080      APN 034-221-02 

Design Permit and a Conditional Use Permit to demolish an existing food mart, 
currently run in conjunction with a gas station, and construct a new commercial retail 
building (7-11) in the CC (Community Commercial) Zoning District. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: Ed Hadad, filed: 6/18/12 
Representative: Joe Nguyen, ASI Consulting 

 
Senior Planner Bane presented the staff report. 
 
Commissioner Smith asked if the concrete wall shown on the project aerial photo will be constructed 
at the rear of the property. 
 
Senior Planner Bane clarified that the wall will be constructed along the east elevation only. 
 

-4-

Item #: 4.A. 4.A.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – DECEMBER 6, 2012  5 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2012\Draft Minutes\12-6-12 DRAFT Minutes.doc 

 

Commissioner Smith inquired on the status of the "Oh Thank Heaven" on the lower portion of the 
price sign. 
 
Senior Planner Bane stated that price signs are not regulated and the "Oh Thank Heaven" sign may 
remain.  
 
Commissioner Ortiz inquired on the minimal landscape improvements shown for the center planter 
area and the planter area on the north property boundary where the existing small monument sign is 
located. 
 
Senior Planner Bane stated that the Architectural and Site Review Committee landscape architect, 
Susan Suddjian, commented that the landscape plan is sufficient for the site.  
 
The public hearing was opened. 
 
Joe Nguyen, architect, spoke in support of the application. 
 
Niki Harmon, resident, spoke with concerns about delivery hours, parking, lighting, dumpster location 
and the improvements proposed along the easement at the rear of the property.   She supported the 
construction of the 6' wall. 
 
The public hearing was closed. 
 
Senior Planner Bane stated that the trash enclosure is located away from the residents; lighting shall 
be shielded from adjacent properties, condition #6; there is a drive isle at the rear of the building, but 
no parking;  the landscape buffer is sufficient as proposed; and deliver hours have not been 
addressed. 
 
Chairperson Graves asked how will compliance with the approved plans will be achieved and if there 
is any bond required for compliance with the conditions of approval. 
 
Senior Planner Bane stated that the city cannot require the applicant to build the project, but can 
require compliance with ongoing code enforcement issues.  Condition #14 that requires the applicant 
to post a $2,000 bond for three years to ensure the landscaping is maintained. 
 
Commissioner Ortiz stated that prior permit approvals included conditions restricting the use of the 
rear of the property for parking and deliveries, in addition to limiting deliveries to the front of the 
building.  She suggested that the previous conditions be included with this permit. 
 
Chairperson Graves commented that condition #8 prohibits outdoor displays, but the current and 
future business will have propane for sale.  He clarified that the propane dispensing area is adjacent 
to the trash enclosure. 
 
Commissioner Smith suggested a condition that would require the concrete wall along the rear of the 
property be installed prior to any other construction to buffer the adjacent residential properties from 
the commercial property. 
 
Commissioner Routh asked the applicant if the back door would be accessible to the public. 
 
Commissioner Ortiz asked the applicant if deliveries are anticipated from the front or back doors; if the 
staff will use the rear door for access; and if the existing sign will remain on the north end of the 
property. 
 

-5-

Item #: 4.A. 4.A.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – DECEMBER 6, 2012  6 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2012\Draft Minutes\12-6-12 DRAFT Minutes.doc 

 

Joe Nguyan responded that the rear door is a required second exit for the building, but will not be 
used by the staff or the public as it will be alarmed.  Deliveries will be accepted at the front door only.  
The existing sign on the north end of the property will remain. 
 
Ed Hadad, property owner, spoke in support of the application. 
 
Commissioner Ortiz suggested an additional condition to prohibit deliveries at the rear door; ensure 
condition #13 includes automated irrigation system in all planted area; and condition #15 include and 
enforcement provision for severely trimmed landscaping or that screening landscaping shall be 
maintained.  She suggested that new developments on 41st Avenue include landscaping that 
incorporates height, mounding and interest to the landscaping in place of flat lawn. 
   
Consultant Susan Westman commented that monitoring and enforcement of difficult conditions are 
dependent on staff availability.  The suggested conditions may be setting up a false expectation of 
enforcement.  She suggested that the Planning Commission authorize staff to work with the applicant 
to develop a landscape plan that incorporates height, mounding and interest in the planting areas.  
She stated that many landscape designs are very restricted by water use in both Santa Cruz Water 
District and Soquel Creek Water District. 
 
Commissioner Newman stated that the existing landscape agreement be reviewed and revised to 
include enforcement and compliance language.  He supported authorizing staff to work with the 
applicant to resolve the landscape design. 
 
Commissioner Ortiz requested copies of both water districts landscaping regulations. 
 
Commissioners Routh and Smith concurred with Commissioner Newman and Ortiz comments. 
 
A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER ORTIZ AND SECONDED BY COMMISSIONSER 
SMITH TO APPROVE PROJECT APPLICATION #12-080 WITH THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS 
AND FINDINGS: 
 
CONDITIONS 
 
1. The project approval consists of demolition of an existing food mart building and construction of  a 

new 2,940 square foot retail building (7-Eleven) for an existing gas station at 2178 41st Avenue. 
 
2. Any significant modifications to the size or exterior appearance of the structure must be approved 

by the Planning Commission. 
 

3. The wall cabinet sign (Oh thank heaven) proposed on the south elevation is not permitted and 
shall not be included in the building permit plans. 

 
4. Hours of construction shall be Monday to Friday 7:30 a.m. – 9:00 p.m., and Saturday 9:00 a.m. – 

4:00 p.m., per city ordinance. 
 

5. Air-conditioning equipment and other roof top equipment shall be screened from view and fall 
within the city permitted decibel levels. 

 
6. Lighting shall be shielded to prevent light from shining on to neighboring properties. 

 
7. Sandwich board and other movable freestanding signs are prohibited.   

 
8. Outdoor product displays are not permitted. 

-6-

Item #: 4.A. 4.A.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – DECEMBER 6, 2012  7 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2012\Draft Minutes\12-6-12 DRAFT Minutes.doc 

 

 
9. The utilities shall be underground to the nearest utility pole in accordance with PG&E and Public 

Works Department requirements.  A note shall be placed on the final building plans indicating this 
requirement. 

 
10. Curb, gutter and sidewalk shall be replaced to meet ADA standards to the satisfaction of the 

Public Works Director. 
 

11. An encroachment permit shall be acquired for any work performed in the right-of-way. 
 

12. A drainage plan or design shall be submitted with the final building plans, to the satisfaction of the 
Public Works Director.  The grade along the eastern property line shall be designed to prevent 
potential drainage issues with the neighboring residential properties.   

 
13. The final landscape plan submitted with the building permit application shall include the specific 

number of plants of each type and their size, as well as the irrigation system to be utilized.  The 
approved landscaping and operational irrigation system shall be installed prior to final occupancy. 

 
14. The applicant shall enter into a landscape maintenance agreement and a cash deposit of 

$2,000.00 shall be retained by the City to cover costs of replacing or maintaining landscaping for a 
period of three (3) years after project completion.  The agreement and deposit shall be completed 
prior to final occupancy. 

 
15. All landscaping must be maintained and non-maintenance will be a basis for review by the 

Planning Commission. 
 
16. Prior to granting of final occupancy, compliance with all conditions of approval shall be 

demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Zoning Administrator or Community Development Director. 
 
17. The landscaping fronting 41st Avenue shall be improved, eliminating the existing lawn area and 

incorporating mounding and a mix of drought tolerant plants to create some verticality to the 
existing landscape islands.  The new landscaping shall be included in the final landscape plan and 
approved by the Community Development Department. 

 
18. Deliveries shall be limited to the front of the building, and will not be permitted to the back door.  

Delivery hours shall be limited to 8:00 a.m. – 8:00 p.m., seven days a week. 
 
19. A 6’ high concrete block wall (measured from project finished grade) will be constructed along the 

eastern property line adjacent to residential properties.  The wall shall be erected as part of the 
initial construction in order to shield the residences from construction noise.  The wall must be 
completed prior to commencing framing of the new building. 

 
FINDINGS 
 
A.  The application, subject to the conditions imposed, will secure the purposes of the 

Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan. 
 

Community Development Department Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and 
the Planning Commission have all reviewed the project.  The project conforms with the 
development standards of the CC (Community Commercial) Zoning District and the 41st 
Avenue Design Guidelines. Conditions of approval have been included to carry out the 
objectives of the Zoning Ordinance and General Plan. 

 

-7-

Item #: 4.A. 4.A.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – DECEMBER 6, 2012  8 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2012\Draft Minutes\12-6-12 DRAFT Minutes.doc 

 

B. The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood. 
 
 Planning Department Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the Planning 

Commission have all reviewed the project.  The project conforms with the development 
standards of the CC (Community Commercial) Zoning District and the 41st Avenue Design 
Guidelines.  Conditions of approval have been included to ensure that the project maintains 
the character and integrity of the area. 

 
C. This project is categorically exempt under Section 15302(b) of the California 

Environmental Quality Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations. 

 
Section 15302(b) of the CEQA Guidelines exempts replacement of a commercial structure 
with a new structure of substantially the same size, purpose, and capacity.  This project 
involves demolition of a food mart and construction of a new retail food mart that is 
substantially the same size, as well as serves the same purpose and capacity.  No adverse 
environmental impacts were discovered during review of the proposed project. 

 
THE MOTION CARRIED ON THE FOLLOWING VOTE:  AYES:  COMMISSIONERS NEWMAN, 
ORTIZ, ROUTH, SMITH AND CHAIRPERSON GRAVES.  NOES:  NONE.  ABSENT:  NONE.  
ABSTAIN:  NONE. 
 

B.  4800 GRACE STREET      #12-131      APN: 034-023-33 
Coastal Development Permit and Design Permit for the construction of a new one-story 
single-family residence in the R-1 (Single-Family Residence) Zoning District. 
This project requires a Coastal Permit which is not appealable to the California Coastal 
Commission. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Owner: Fred & Nan DeJarlais, filed 10/2/12 

 
Senior Planner Bane presented the staff report. 
 
The public hearing was opened. 
 
Fred DeJarlais, property owner, spoke in support of the application. 
 
The public hearing was closed. 
 
Commissioner Newman stated that this type of application that meets all the ordinance requirements 
should be a consent item. 
 
Commissioner Routh complimented the application for designing a project that does not overbuild the 
lot. 
 
A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER NEWMAN AND SECONDED BY COMMISSIONSER 
ROUTH TO APPROVE PROJECT APPLICATION #12-131 WITH THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS 
AND FINDINGS: 
 
CONDITIONS 
 
1. The project approval consists of construction of a new 1,474 square foot one-story single-family 

structure with a 269 square foot attached garage at 4800 Grace Street. 
 

-8-

Item #: 4.A. 4.A.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – DECEMBER 6, 2012  9 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2012\Draft Minutes\12-6-12 DRAFT Minutes.doc 

 

2. Any significant modifications to the size or exterior appearance of the structure must be approved 
by the Planning Commission. 

 
3. Hours of construction shall be Monday to Friday 7:30 a.m. – 9:00 p.m., and Saturday 9:00 a.m. – 

4:00 p.m., per city ordinance. 
 
4. The utilities shall be underground to the nearest utility pole in accordance with PG&E and Public 

Works Department requirements.  A note shall be placed on the final building plans indicating this 
requirement. 

 
5. The applicant shall have the option to install a sidewalk as part of the approved project, or record 

a deferred sidewalk agreement approved by the City Public Works Director. 
 

6. An encroachment permit shall be acquired for any work performed in the right-of-way. 
 

7. A drainage plan or design shall be submitted with the final building plans, to the satisfaction of the 
Public Works Director. 

 
8. The project shall implement Low Impact Development BMP’s outlined in the Slow it. Spread it. 

Sink it. Homeowner’s Guide to Greening Stormwater Runoff by the Resource Conservation District 
of Santa Cruz County.  The applicant shall provide details on the bmp’s implemented and with a 
goal of not allowing more than 25% of total impervious area from discharging directly from the site. 

 
9. The final landscape plan shall be submitted with the building permit application and will include the 

specific number of plants of each type and their size, as well as the irrigation system to be utilized. 
Front yard landscaping shall be installed prior to final building occupancy. 

 
10. Affordable housing in-lieu fees shall be paid as required to assure compliance with the City of 

Capitola Affordable (Inclusionary) Housing Ordinance.  Any appropriate fees shall be paid prior to 
building permit issuance. 

 
11. Prior to granting of final occupancy, compliance with all conditions of approval shall be 

demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Zoning Administrator or Community Development Director. 
 
FINDINGS 
 
A.  The application, subject to the conditions imposed, will secure the purposes of the 

Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan. 
 
 Planning Department Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the Planning 

Commission have all reviewed the project.  The project generally conforms to the development 
standards of the R-1 (Single Family Residence) Zoning District.  Conditions of approval have 
been included to carry out the objectives of the Zoning Ordinance, General Plan and Local 
Coastal Plan. 

 
B.  The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood. 
 
 Planning Department Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the Planning 

Commission have all reviewed the project.  The project conforms to the development 
standards of the R-1 (Single Family Residence) Zoning District.  Conditions of approval have 
been included to ensure that the project maintains the character and integrity of the 
neighborhood. 

 

-9-

Item #: 4.A. 4.A.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – DECEMBER 6, 2012  10 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2012\Draft Minutes\12-6-12 DRAFT Minutes.doc 

 

C.  This project is categorically exempt under Section 15303(a) of the California 
Environmental Quality Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations. 

 
 This project involves construction of a new single-family residence in the R-1 (single family 

residence) Zoning District.  Section 15303 of the CEQA Guidelines exempts the construction 
of a single-family residence in a residential zone.   

 
THE MOTION CARRIED ON THE FOLLOWING VOTE:  AYES:  COMMISSIONERS NEWMAN, 
ORTIZ, ROUTH, SMITH AND CHAIRPERSON GRAVES.  NOES:  NONE.  ABSENT:  NONE.  
ABSTAIN:  NONE. 
 

C.  515 GILROY DRIVE      #12-140      APN: 035-081-04 
Coastal Development Permit and Design Permit for the demolition of a single-family 
residence and construction of a new two-story single-family residence in the R-1 
(Single-Family Residence) Zoning District. 
This project requires a Coastal Permit which is not appealable to the California Coastal 
Commission 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Owner: Mary Byrne, filed 10/28/12 
Representative: Frank Phanton 

 
Commissioner Ortiz and Chairperson Graves recused themselves as they own property within 300 
feet of the subject property application.  Vice-Chairperson Routh introduced the item. 
 
Senior Planner Bane presented the staff report. 
 
The public hearing was opened. 
 
Frank Phanton, architect, spoke in support of the application.  He presented a revised plan that 
resolves the neighbor's window placement concern. 
 
Commissioner Routh suggested that revised plan be continued to the January meeting. 
 
Consultant Susan Westman stated the only change in the plan is the window. 
 
Commissioner Smith asked if the proposed casement window meets the current code requirements 
for egress window. 
 
Frank Phanton responded that the casement window does meet the current code requirements for an 
egress window. 
 
Judith Feinman, spoke with concerns about the window and appreciated that applicant's efforts to 
address her concerns. 
 
The public hearing was closed. 
 
Commissioner Smith stated that second story windows are a concern throughout Capitola.  The code 
requirements and obscure glass have resolved the safety and privacy issues. 
 
Commissioner Newman supported the redesigned window. 
 
Commissioner Routh stated that the window is a required second exit.  

-10-

Item #: 4.A. 4.A.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – DECEMBER 6, 2012  11 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2012\Draft Minutes\12-6-12 DRAFT Minutes.doc 

 

A MOTION WAS MADE BY COMMISSIONER SMITH AND SECONDED BY COMMISSIONSER 
NEWMAN TO APPROVE PROJECT APPLICATION #12-140 WITH THE FOLLOWING 
CONDITIONS AND FINDINGS: 
 
CONDITIONS 
 
1. The project approval consists of demolition of an existing single-family house and construction of a 

new 1,373 square foot two-story single-family structure with a 223 square foot attached garage at 
515 Gilroy Drive. 

 
2. Any significant modifications to the size or exterior appearance of the structure must be approved 

by the Planning Commission. 
 
3. Hours of construction shall be Monday to Friday 7:30 a.m. – 9:00 p.m., and Saturday 9:00 a.m. – 

4:00 p.m., per city ordinance. 
 
4. The utilities shall be underground to the nearest utility pole in accordance with PG&E and Public 

Works Department requirements.  A note shall be placed on the final building plans indicating this 
requirement. 

 
5. The existing curb and sidewalk shall be replaced to the satisfaction of the Public Works Director. 

 
6. An encroachment permit shall be acquired for any work performed in the right-of-way. 

 
7. A drainage plan or design shall be submitted with the final building plans, to the satisfaction of the 

Public Works Director. 
 
8. During all grading and subsurface excavations (including utility-line trenching), construction will be 

halted if significant unexpected, archaeological resources are discovered.  For the purpose of this 
permit, significant archaeological resources shall include the remains of previous Native American 
living areas or human burials.  In the instance of Native American living areas, these objects shall 
be recorded and mapped by an archaeologist approved by the Community Development Director 
prior to further excavation on that portion of the site.  In the event human burials are discovered 
during excavation, work shall be halted and the County Coroner, the Northwest Indian Cemetery 
Protective Association (NICPA) and other appropriate authorities shall be notified.  Mitigation 
measures developed by the applicant and authorized archaeologists as a result of such 
unanticipated discovery shall be subject to the approval of the Community Development Director. 

 
9. The project shall implement Low Impact Development BMP’s outlined in the Slow it. Spread it. 

Sink it. Homeowner’s Guide to Greening Stormwater Runoff by the Resource Conservation District 
of Santa Cruz County.  The applicant shall provide details on the bmp’s implemented and with a 
goal of not allowing more than 25% of total impervious area from discharging directly from the site. 

 
10. The final landscape plan shall be submitted with the building permit application and will include the 

specific number of plants of each type and their size, as well as the irrigation system to be utilized. 
Front yard landscaping shall be installed prior to final building occupancy. 

 
11. Affordable housing in-lieu fees shall be paid as required to assure compliance with the City of 

Capitola Affordable (Inclusionary) Housing Ordinance.  Any appropriate fees shall be paid prior to 
building permit issuance. 

 
12. Prior to granting of final occupancy, compliance with all conditions of approval shall be 

demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Zoning Administrator or Community Development Director. 

-11-

Item #: 4.A. 4.A.pdf



CAPITOLA CITY PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – DECEMBER 6, 2012  12 
 

P:\Current Planning\MINUTES\Planning Commission\2012\Draft Minutes\12-6-12 DRAFT Minutes.doc 

 

 
FINDINGS 
 
A.  The application, subject to the conditions imposed, will secure the purposes of the 

Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan. 
 
 Planning Department Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the Planning 

Commission have all reviewed the project.  The project generally conforms to the development 
standards of the R-1 (Single Family Residence) Zoning District.  Conditions of approval have 
been included to carry out the objectives of the Zoning Ordinance, General Plan and Local 
Coastal Plan. 

 
B.  The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood. 
 
 Planning Department Staff, the Architectural and Site Review Committee, and the Planning 

Commission have all reviewed the project.  The project conforms to the development 
standards of the R-1 (Single Family Residence) Zoning District.  Conditions of approval have 
been included to ensure that the project maintains the character and integrity of the 
neighborhood. 

 
C.  This project is categorically exempt under Section 15303(a) of the California 

Environmental Quality Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations. 

 
 This project involves construction of a new single-family residence in the R-1 (single family 

residence) Zoning District.  Section 15303 of the CEQA Guidelines exempts the construction 
of a single-family residence in a residential zone.   

 
THE MOTION CARRIED ON THE FOLLOWING VOTE:  AYES:  COMMISSIONERS NEWMAN, 
SMITH, AND VICE-CHAIRPERSON ROUTH.  NOES:  NONE.  ABSENT:  NONE.  ABSTAIN:  
COMMISSIONER ORTIZ AND CHAIRPERSON GRAVES. 
 
6. DIRECTOR'S REPORT 
 
Consultant Susan Westman thanked Commissioner Newman for his years of service to the Planning 
Commission and the city.  
 
7. COMMISSION COMMUNICATIONS 
 
Chairperson Graves suggested the city present Commissioner Newman with a resolution of 
appreciation at the January 17, 2013 meeting. 
 
8. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The Planning Commission adjourned the meeting at 8:16 p.m. to a Regular Meeting of the Planning 
Commission to be held on Thursday, January 17, 2013 at 7:00 p.m., in the City Hall Council 
Chambers, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, California. 
 
Approved by the Planning Commission on January 17, 2013 
 
 
________________________________ 
       Danielle Uharriet, Minute Clerk 

-12-

Item #: 4.A. 4.A.pdf



 
 

S T A F F   R E P O R T 
 

TO:  PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
FROM:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  DEPARTMENT 
 
DATE:  JANUARY 17, 2013 
 
SUBJECT: 723 EL SALTO DRIVE  #10-082  APN: 036-143-35 

Minor land division to convert four apartment units to condominiums in the VS/R-
1 (Visitor Serving/Single-Family Residence) Zoning District. 
Environmental Determination:  Categorical Exemption 

 Property Owner:  Doug Dodds 
 
 
APPLICANT’S PROPOSAL 
 
The applicant is requesting a one-year extension of a previously approved minor land division to 
convert four apartments to condominiums at 723 El Salto in the VS/R-1 (Visitor Serving/Single-
Family Residence) Zoning District.  The proposed project remains consistent with the General 
Plan, Zoning Ordinance and Local Coastal Plan. 
   
BACKGROUND 
 
On January 20, 2011, the Planning Commission approved the above-mentioned application 
#10-082.  The Planning Commission staff report and minutes have been included for your 
information (Attachment B).  
  
DISCUSSION 
 
Pursuant to Section 17.63.130 of the Zoning Ordinance, approvals of the Planning Commission 
are valid for two years. The permit has not yet been activated, therefore the applicant has 
submitted for an extension of the permit. The extension request letter is attached (Attachment 
A).  
 
Since the Planning Commission was the body that originally approved the permit, they have the 
power to grant, “one or more extensions, each of which shall be for one year.” Both Section 
17.81.160 and Coastal Zone Ordinance Section 17.46.120 state that a request for an extension 
may be granted upon a finding that no relevant substantial change of circumstances, regulations 
or planning policies has occurred and that such extension would not be detrimental to the 
purpose of the certified local coastal program and zoning ordinance.  Since neither the physical 
characteristics of the lot nor the zoning ordinance has changed since approval of the permit, 
staff supports the request for a one-year extension. 
 
It should be noted that while the Planning Commission has the power to approve or deny 
extensions, it has no power to exact conditions unless codes and circumstances have changed. 
Conditions can be added, but only if agreed upon by the applicant. 

-13-

Item #: 5. 723 El Salto Drive Staff Report.pdf



PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA REPORT:  January 17, 2013     723 El Salto Drive  
 

 

 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the Planning Commission approve the request for a one-year 
extension, subject to the following finding. If approved, this finding is in addition to the findings 
made for the original permit: 
 
A. A substantial change of circumstances has not occurred since Planning 

Commission approval of the permit on January 20, 2011. An additional one-year 
extension of the permit to January 20, 2014, would not be detrimental to the 
purpose of the certified local coastal program and zoning ordinance. 

 
The Planning Commission finds that neither the physical characteristics of the lot nor the 
zoning ordinance has changed since approval of the permit on January 20, 2011. 
Therefore, a one-year extension (to January 20, 2014) of said permit is appropriate. 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

A.  Request for extension letter from Doug Dodds, dated January 3, 2013 
B.  January 20, 2011 Staff Report, Project Plans and Planning Commission Minutes 

 
 
Report Prepared By:  Ryan Bane 
    Senior Planner                   
     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P:\Planning Commission\2013 Meeting Packets\1-17-13\Word docs\El Salto 723 ext staff report.docx 

-14-

Item #: 5. 723 El Salto Drive Staff Report.pdf



-15-

Item #: 5. Attachment A.pdf



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-16-



-17-

Item #: 5. Attachment B.pdf



-18-

Item #: 5. Attachment B.pdf



-19-

Item #: 5. Attachment B.pdf



-20-

Item #: 5. Attachment B.pdf



-21-

Item #: 5. Attachment B.pdf



-22-

Item #: 5. Attachment B.pdf



-23-

Item #: 5. Attachment B.pdf



-24-

Item #: 5. Attachment B.pdf



-25-

Item #: 5. Attachment B.pdf



-26-

Item #: 5. Attachment B.pdf



-27-

Item #: 5. Attachment B.pdf



-28-

Item #: 5. Attachment B.pdf



-29-

Item #: 5. Attachment B.pdf



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-30-



 
 

S T A F F   R E P O R T 
 

TO:  PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
FROM:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  DEPARTMENT 
 
DATE:  JANUARY 17, 2013 
 
SUBJECT: 1900 41ST AVENUE                        #12-155                             APN 034-201-10 

Amendment to an existing restaurant Conditional Use Permit (Capitola Diner) to 
incorporate a bar use and allow live entertainment in the CC (Community 
Commercial) Zoning District. 

  Environmental Determination:  Categorical Exemption 
  Property Owner:  R. Deane, filed: 11/21/12 
  Representative:  Pedro Salazar 
 
 
APPLICANT’S PROPOSAL 
 
The applicant is requesting an amendment to an existing restaurant (Capitola Diner) Conditional 
Use Permit to incorporate a bar use and allow live entertainment at 1900 41st Avenue in the CC 
(Community Commercial) Zoning District.  The use is consistent with the General Plan and 
Zoning Ordinance with the issuance of a Conditional Use Permit. 
   
BACKGROUND 
 
What had been a Lions restaurant for many years has changed ownership several times over 
the past few years.  The Capitola Diner has continued to be a restaurant with a small bar area 
that has had fairly standard operating hours (8am-10pm).  Over the past two years the police 
department has responded to at least three incidents within the restaurant where live 
entertainment was being provided without a valid entertainment permit.  These incidents 
generally involved a disc jockey (DJ) playing music, large crowds, and other live entertainment 
such as strippers.  A memo from City Police Chief Rudy Escalante (Attachment C) summarizes 
some of these events, and states that they cannot support the proposed amendment to the 
Conditional Use Permit. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
As part of the amendment to the existing restaurant conditional use permit, the applicant is 
requesting to extend the business hours to stay open until 12:30am on Fridays and Saturdays.  
The restaurant would continue to serve food, but the bar would also be open for customers.  
They are also requesting permission to have live entertainment, such as a DJ.  This would be to 
provide music for normal customers, as well as to celebrate special events such as birthdays, 
anniversaries, etc.  A dance floor is not being proposed. 
 
The restaurant has had a small bar for many years which was recently updated, but not 
enlarged (Attachment B).  It is approximately 5’x15’ in size, and is still a small percentage of the 

-31-

Item #: 6.A. 1900 41st Avenue Staff Report.pdf



PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA REPORT:  January 17, 2013     1900 41
st
 Avenue  

 

 

 

overall square footage of the restaurant.  The interior of the restaurant consists mostly of fixed 
bench seating and tables.  No changes are proposed to the interior or exterior of the building as 
part of this application. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The Community Development staff shares some of the same concerns expressed by the Police 
Department.  But with appropriate conditions of approval incorporated into the Conditional Use 
Permit, staff could support some aspects of the requested amendment.  While no complaints 
have been received from the neighboring residents, we want to make sure that allowing these 
amendments would not create a nuisance.  Keeping the neighboring residents in mind, staff 
could support the restaurant/bar to remain open until possibly midnight, but would limit the 
entertainment to a DJ only, not permitting live bands or any other type of live entertainment.  
Also, an annual entertainment permit will be required to be obtained through the Police 
Department, who will enforce such issues such as security, noise, etc.  If, the Planning 
Commission can support the requested CUP amendments, it is recommended that they be 
approved subject to the following conditions and based upon the following findings: 
 
CONDITIONS 
 
1.  The project approval consists of an amendment to an existing restaurant (Capitola Diner) 

Conditional Use Permit to incorporate a bar use and allow live entertainment at 1900 41st 
Avenue. 
 

2.  The permitted hours of operation shall be Sunday – Thursday, 7am – 10pm, and Friday – 
Saturday, 7am – midnight. 

 
3.  Entertainment shall be limited to a disc jockey (DJ).  No live bands or any other type of live 

entertainment (exotic dancing, strippers, etc.) shall be permitted. 
 

4.  An entertainment permit shall be obtained through the Capitola Police Department on an 
annual basis. 

 
5.  Air-conditioning equipment and other roof top equipment shall be screened from view and 

fall within the city permitted decibel levels. 
 
6.  Lighting shall be shielded to prevent light from shining on to neighboring properties. 

 
7.  Sandwich board and other movable freestanding signs are prohibited.   

 
8.  All landscaping must be maintained, and non-maintenance will be a basis for review by the 

Planning Commission. 
 

9.  Any significant modifications to the site or restaurant building must be approved by the 
Planning Commission.  Similarly, any significant change to the use itself, must be approved 
by the Planning Commission. 

 
10. The application shall be reviewed by the Planning Commission upon evidence of non-

compliance with conditions of approval or applicable municipal code provisions. 
 
 

-32-

Item #: 6.A. 1900 41st Avenue Staff Report.pdf



PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA REPORT:  January 17, 2013     1900 41
st
 Avenue  

 

 

 

FINDINGS 
 
 
A.  The application, subject to the conditions imposed, will secure the purposes of 

the Zoning Ordinance, General Plan, and Local Coastal Plan. 
 

Community Development Department Staff and the Planning Commission have 
reviewed the project.  The project conforms with the development standards of the CC 
(Community Commercial) Zoning District and the 41st Avenue Design Guidelines. 
Conditions of approval have been included to carry out the objectives of the Zoning 
Ordinance and General Plan. 

 
B. The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood. 
 
 Planning Department Staff and the Planning Commission have reviewed the project.  

The project conforms with the development standards of the CC (Community 
Commercial) Zoning District and the 41st Avenue Design Guidelines.  Conditions of 
approval have been included to ensure that the project maintains the character and 
integrity of the area. 

 
C. This project is categorically exempt under Section 15301 of the California 

Environmental Quality Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations. 

 
The proposed project involves an amendment to an existing use permit with no 
expansion of use beyond what has currently existed.  No adverse environmental impacts 
were discovered during project review by either the Planning Department Staff or the 
Planning Commission. 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

A.  Letter from the applicant Pedro Salazar, dated November 4, 2012 
B.  Photos and a floor plan of the existing bar 
C.  Memo from Capitola Police Chief Rudy Escalante, dated January 9, 2013 

 
 
Report Prepared By:  Ryan Bane 
    Senior Planner                   
     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P:\Planning Commission\2013 Meeting Packets\1-17-13\Word docs\41st Ave 1900 Capitola Diner CUP staff report.docx 

-33-

Item #: 6.A. 1900 41st Avenue Staff Report.pdf



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-34-



-35-

Item #: 6.A. Attachment A.pdf



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-36-



-37-

Item #: 6.A. Attachment B.pdf



-38-

Item #: 6.A. Attachment B.pdf



-39-

Item #: 6.A. Attachment C.pdf



-40-

Item #: 6.A. Attachment C.pdf



 
 

S T A F F   R E P O R T 
 

TO:  PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
FROM:  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT  DEPARTMENT 
 
DATE:  JANUARY 17, 2013 
 
SUBJECT: 3555 CLARES STREET, SUITE G            #12-159                    APN 034-201-10 

Amendment to an existing restaurant Conditional Use Permit (Crown Cafe) to 
allow an outdoor barbeque in the CC (Community Commercial) Zoning District. 

  Environmental Determination:  Categorical Exemption 
  Property Owner:  Bob Rivers, Brown Ranch Properties, filed: 12/13/12 
  Representative:  Ron Clements Jr. 
 
 
APPLICANT’S PROPOSAL 
 
The applicant is requesting an amendment to an existing restaurant (Crown Café Deli & 
Catering) Conditional Use Permit to allow the installation of an outdoor barbeque at 3555 Clares 
Street within the Brown Ranch Marketplace in the CC (Community Commercial) Zoning District.  
The use is consistent with the General Plan and Zoning Ordinance with the issuance of a 
Conditional Use Permit. 
   
BACKGROUND 
 
In November of 2012 the city received a complaint regarding a portable barbeque being located 
in the parking lot at Brown Ranch Marketplace.  His main concern was regarding the barbeque 
being a possible tripping hazard to pedestrians walking through the parking lot.  The property 
management was contacted by the Community Development Department, and they followed up 
with an application to gain approvals for the outdoor barbeque as part of the Crown Café Deli & 
Catering business. 
  
DISCUSSION 
 
Crown Café Deli & Catering has been operating since 2011 when it took over the space (Suite 
G) formerly occupied by Quizno’s.  The business features hot and cold sandwiches, soups, 
salads, desserts, and catering services and is open from 11am-7pm daily.  Previously, all food 
preparation had been contained within the building.  The applicant is requesting an amendment 
to their Conditional Use Permit to allow an outdoor barbeque for the purpose of preparing food 
for sale at Crown Café Deli & Catering.  No food service is proposed at the barbeque area. 
 
The small portable barbeque is located on a 12.5’x 9.5’ concrete pad within the existing parking 
lot area.  The barbeque itself is 60” x 94” and 7’ in height.  In recent weeks a wood fence has 
been constructed around the area to better designate the area.  Staff has observed the 
barbeque in use, and the smoke did not appear to be a nuisance as it is located far enough from 
the neighboring businesses. 

-41-

Item #: 6.B. 3555 Clares Street, Suite G Staff Report.pdf



PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA REPORT:  January 17, 2013     3555 Clares Street, Suite G  
 

 

 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the Planning Commission approve application #12-159, subject to the 
following conditions and based upon the following findings: 
 
CONDITIONS 
 
1.  The project approval consists of an amendment to an existing restaurant (Crown Café Deli & 

Catering) Conditional Use Permit to allow the installation of an outdoor barbeque at 3555 
Clares Street within the Brown Ranch Marketplace. 
 

2.  The barbeque shall be used for food preparation only.  No food shall be served from the 
barbeque location. 

 
3.  The barbeque area shall be kept clean and orderly. 

 
4.  Any significant modifications to the size or exterior appearance of the barbeque area must 

be approved by the Planning Commission.  Similarly, any significant change to the use itself, 
or the site, must be approved by the Planning Commission. 

 
5.  The application shall be reviewed by the Planning Commission upon evidence of non-

compliance with conditions of approval or applicable municipal code provisions. 
 

  
FINDINGS 
 
A.  The application, subject to the conditions imposed, will secure the purposes of 

the Zoning Ordinance and General Plan. 
 

Community Development Staff and the Planning Commission have reviewed the project 
and determined that the proposed use is permitted in the CC (Community Commercial) 
Zoning District with a Conditional Use Permit.  Conditions of approval have been 
included to carry out the objectives of the Zoning Ordinance and General Plan. 
 

B.  The application will maintain the character and integrity of the neighborhood.   
 

Community Development Staff and the Planning Commission have reviewed the project 
and determined that the addition of the outdoor barbeque will not have a negative impact 
on the character and integrity of the commercial area.  Conditions of approval have been 
included to ensure that the project maintains the character and integrity of the area. 

 
C.  This project is categorically exempt under Section 15301 of the California 

Environmental Quality Act and is not subject to Section 753.5 of Title 14 of the 
California Code of Regulations. 

 
The proposed project involves an amendment to an existing use permit with no 
expansion of use beyond what has currently existed.  No adverse environmental impacts 
were discovered during project review by either the Planning Department Staff or the 
Planning Commission. 

 

-42-

Item #: 6.B. 3555 Clares Street, Suite G Staff Report.pdf



PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA REPORT:  January 17, 2013     3555 Clares Street, Suite G  
 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS 

A.  Letter from the applicant Bob Rivers, including a letter from the merchant, a petition 
supporting the barbeque, site plan, and project photos - dated December 10, 2012 

B.  Photos of the existing barbeque area 
 
 
Report Prepared By:  Ryan Bane 
    Senior Planner                   
     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P:\Planning Commission\2013 Meeting Packets\1-17-13\Word docs\Clares St 3555 Crown Cafe Deli CUP staff report.docx 

-43-

Item #: 6.B. 3555 Clares Street, Suite G Staff Report.pdf



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-44-



-45-

Item #: 6.B. Attachment A.pdf



-46-

Item #: 6.B. Attachment A.pdf



-47-

Item #: 6.B. Attachment A.pdf



-48-

Item #: 6.B. Attachment A.pdf



-49-

Item #: 6.B. Attachment A.pdf



-50-

Item #: 6.B. Attachment A.pdf



-51-

Item #: 6.B. Attachment A.pdf



-52-

Item #: 6.B. Attachment A.pdf



-53-

Item #: 6.B. Attachment A.pdf



-54-

Item #: 6.B. Attachment A.pdf



-55-

Item #: 6.B. Attachment A.pdf



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-56-



-57-

Item #: 6.B. Attachment B.pdf



-58-

Item #: 6.B. Attachment B.pdf


	AGENDA
	1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	2. NEW BUSINESS
	A. Oath of Office - Newly Appointed Commissioner
	B. Election of Chair and Vice-Chair
	C. Committee Appointments
	a.  General Plan Advisory Committee
	b.  Traffic and Parking Commission
	c.  Commission on the Environment
	d.  Arts and Cultural Commission


	3. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS
	A. Additions and Deletions to Agenda
	B. Public Comments
	C. Commission Comments
	D. Staff Comments

	4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	A. December 6, 2012 Regular Planning Commission Meeting
	[4.A.pdf]


	5. CONSENT CALENDAR
	[723 El Salto Drive Staff Report.pdf]
	[Attachment A.pdf]
	[Attachment B.pdf]
	A. 723 EL SALTO DRIVE  #10-092 APN: 036-143-35
Request for a one-year extension to a previously approved Minor Land Division to convert four apartment units to condominiums in the VS/R-1 (Visitor Serving/Single-Family Residence) Zoning District. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption
Property Owner: Doug Dodds, filed: 1/2/13

	6. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
	A. 1900 41ST AVENUE  #12-155  APN 034-201-10
Amendment to an existing restaurant Conditional Use Permit (Capitola Diner) to incorporate a bar use and allow live entertainment in the CC (Community Commercial) Zoning District.
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption
Property Owner: R. Deane, filed: 11/21/12
Representative: Pedro Salazar 
	[1900 41st Avenue Staff Report.pdf]
	[Attachment A.pdf]
	[Attachment B.pdf]
	[Attachment C.pdf]

	B. 3555 CLARES STREET, SUITE G#12-159  APN 034-261-56
Amendment to an existing restaurant Conditional Use Permit (Crown Cafe) to allow an outdoor barbeque in the CC (Community Commercial) Zoning District.
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption
Property Owner: Bob Rivers, Brown Ranch Properties, filed: 12/13/12
Representative: Ron Clements, Jr.
	[3555 Clares Street, Suite G Staff Report.pdf]
	[Attachment A.pdf]
	[Attachment B.pdf]


	7. DIRECTOR'S REPORT
	8. COMMISSION COMMUNICATIONS
	9. ADJOURNMENT

